
 Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

Thursday, February 16th, 2023 at 6:00PM 
Transportation Building 

3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



Tillamook County Transportation District Nov 2022 

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE 

Operating 

Service Passengers Farebox Cost 

Month per Hour Ratio per Hour 

Dial-A-Ride Services 

Nov-21 1.5 43.1% 82.10 

Aug-22 1.5 45.3% 97.93 

Sep-22 1.5 48.8% 91.15 

Oct-22 1.5 48.3% 90.77 

Nov-22 1.5 50.5% 88.03 

Deviated Fixed Routes 

Nov-21 4.0 5.0% 82.93 

Aug-22 5.1 5.6% 98.15 

Sep-22 5.1 5.9% 98.60 

Oct-22 5.0 5.8% 91.62 

Nov-22 4.9 5.8% 88.95 

lntercit� Services 

Nov-21 1.8 9.8% 90.40 

Aug-22 2.6 12.4% 112.12 

Sep-22 2.6 13.0% 104.26 

Oct-22 2.6 12.3% 104.36 

Nov-22 2.5 11.9% 101.75 

Other Services 

Nov-21 2.6 0.7% 74.28 

Aug-22 6.1 0.0% 99.34 

Sep-22 6.3 0.0% 93.10 

Oct-22 6.2 0.1% 92.69 

Nov-22 6.1 0.1% 89.82 

Dial-a-Ride includes County-wide DAR, NW Rides, Veterans Transportation 
Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2A Oceanside, 2B POTB, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 
4 Lincoln City 
Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde 
Other Services: Trippers, Special Bus Operations/PC Free Shuttle 

29



30



31



32



33



Coordinating Committee Virtual Meeting 
February 10, 2023 

10:00 am—12:00 pm 

In-Person  
Tillamook County Transit District 

3600 Third Street, Suite A 
Tillamook, Oregon 97141 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259 

Call In: 1 253 215 8782 
Meeting ID: 875 5229 0259 

Agenda 

10:00—
10:15a 1. Introductions.  Welcome to Brian Vitulli Cynda Bruce 

10:15—
10:35a 

2. Consent Calendar (Action Item)
January Meeting Minutes (Attached) 
Financial Report  
Ridership Tracking 

Cynda Bruce/All 

10:35—
10:50a 

3. NWOTA Standing Items
Marketing Update – Pending contract 
Website Update 

Sarah Lu Heath 

10:50- 
11:05a 4. Token Transit All 

11:20-
11:30p 5. Other Business All 

11:30a – 
12:00p 6. Member Updates All 

Attachments: 

January Meeting Minutes 
Ridership/Passenger Mile Tracking 

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with 
disabilities.  If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Sarah Lu Heath at 971.328.2877 at 
least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

34

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259


NWOTA Minutes 
Thursday, January 13, 2023 

In Attendance:  Cynda Bruce, Jeff Hazen, Sarah Lu Heath, Arla Miller, Mike Reed, 

Consent Calendar Reviewed:   Financials were not provided at this meeting. No update was received 
from Trillium for web services. Ridership and emissions tracking numbers were reviewed. Motion to 
approve the consent calendar was made by John Dreezsen and seconded by Jeff Hazen. 

Marketing Update: TCTD is waiting on professional services agreement for contract. 

STIF Update:  Arla Miller provided an update on the STIF Discretionary process. Notably, Patrick DePriest 
is leaving his role with ODOT; the funding requested was approximately $50 million with $28 million 
available for disbursement. It was also noted that the ODOT process was shortened this cycle.  

The NWACT reviewed the projects and voted to support all three applications in the region. 

Other Business:   It was requested that all attend an in-person meeting in Tillamook to welcome their 
new director in February. An agenda item of token transit was requested in February.  

Updates: 

Tillamook County Transit District: Brain Vitulli has accepted the director position at TCTD and will start in 
February. TCTD elected four new board members. The district will be starting a new service with three 
trips per day to Portland. TCTD is restoring service to north bound lines including service to Port of 
Tillamook Bay. New fare policy started with flat rate fares and the addition of token transit. 

Columbia County Rider: Recently reduced service to Portland. Van pools are being consider to provide 
alternative transit options.  

Lincoln County Transit: Successfully completed review. Applications for grants are underway. 

Meeting was adjourned at 11:26am  

35



Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting 
Thursday, January 19, 2023 – 6:00PM  
Transportation Building 
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR  
Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Mary Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present 
TCTD Board of Directors  
Mary Johnson, Board Chair 
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer  
Linda Adler, Secretary  
Marty Holm, Director  
Jackie Edwards, Director  

TCTD Staff 
Mike Reed, Interim General Manager/ Operations Superintendent 
Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor (ABSENT) 
Natalie Zuercher, Admin Assistant/ Board Clerk 
Jules Hooter, Brokerage Manager 

Guest  
Will Chappell, Headlight Herald  
Catherine Hendrix, Guest  
Arla Miller, ODOT  
Kathy Kleczek, NW Transportation Options 
Nathan Finn, Guest  

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda:
IGM/OS Reed discussed FS Bond being absent due to bereavement leave. 
Due to this, no financials tonight as well as service report. Didn’t want to present 
incomplete information. Recognized Carol McAndrew. Talked about 
resolutions coming from council today. Didn’t have resolution originally stated 
#23-01 so resolutions are renumerated.  

Dir. Holm asked about renumeration of items. IGM/OS Reed clarified why 
the renumeration occurred. 

5. Public & Guest Comments:
a. Catherine Hendrix introduced herself as a member of the Oceanside

Neighborhood Association. Discussed 10-year investment plan as well as
development of Oceanside Community Coalition. Hopes that the transportation
district will be involved as stakeholder or partner. See if there is interest here.

36



Still in infant stages. Identified 26 partners for stakeholders and transportation 
district came up. Discussed paving of parking lot and improvements that could 
be made. Have been meeting for 6 weeks. Supported by Nan Devlin (TCVA) 
she has made similar plans with tourism but ours is roads, pavements, and 
projects. She would hold informational meeting. Come up with mission 
statement and then plan. Wanted to introduce concept of this. Wanted to see 
where support is. I do not have anything in writing to give to you yet. Once get, 
can send to website. Introduced this to feedback email address. I know you are 
in a state of change. Just looking for support and voice in how moving forward. 

IGM/OS Reed said he didn’t receive email and you are correct; we have new 
GM on way. This project will be introduced to him. We are always interceded 
in making friends with community partners. Route 2 service is vital with in 
county services. Discussed paving and keep in mind we are transit 
organization, different between us and roads and signs. We would like to be a 
partner in this discussion. 

Catherine Hendrix said she will let Bruce know about giving more information 
to TCTD about this. Hoping this brings us back together as a community. Will 
send written documents your way when receive them.  

Dir. Adler asked about how TCTD could be of help to this. 

Catherine Hendrix responded that she worked 25 years in transportation, 
passionate about public transportation. Knows TCTD does a great job. 

Kathy Kleczek mentioned helping organizing employers in area. Send them my 
way with transportation. SDAO conference is coming up, hope some have 
registered and will be there. Opportunities to bring up issues on agenda. Send me 
an email if this is so. Hope to see some of you there.  

6. Executive Session:  None

REPORTS 
7. Financial Report: 

IGM/OS Reed discussed the provided Visa and Fred Meyer statements. 

8. Service Measure Performance Report: None.

9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance:
IGM/OS Reed updated about pending contract with Trillium, awaiting 
language. Will be signed and taken care of. 

Discussed STIF funding, led by Arla Miller. Move partners in the same direction 
and plan for the future. Partners are excited to meet Brian.  

37



 
10. Planning & Development: IGM/OS Reed shared the following updates: 

Service Expansion happening Sunday. Doug had spent a lot of years on this. 
Three Route 5 trips going into Portland. TCTD is now meeting this specific 
need. 
 
Final implementation of the fare policy. Didn’t happen in September due to GM 
passing in June. Come Sunday these projects will be wrapped up. We have 
expanded service with Route 6. It has been a heavy lift at the end. Super 
excited about this. Fare will be more affordable. Youth under 18 rides free. 
TBCC students ride free. In county services will be $1 for one fare. The larger 
change is that Route 5, there isn’t a $15/$20 pass. It will be $15 each direction 
now as well as discounted fares on Route 5. Offering a 10-trip pass for $120 or 
$60 for reduced. Hope is to give folks more access to transit. The next 12-18 
months want to see ridership grow. Hopes this will be last of services changes. 
Thank you for allowing me to work on this and pull it off.  
 

11. Grant Funding: IGM/OS Reed shared the following updates:  
Discussed the 4 Resolutions, these deadlines are tomorrow. These things 
happened quick at the end. Kind of let this slip a little bit, had to put together 
last minute. The district is so lucky to have Arla Miller who has stepped in to 
help me with this. She has done this work on behalf of the district. These 
resolutions are her work product. These are STIF, 5310, 5311, funding these 
are rollover from same plan. A few small changes but they are similar to 2021-
2023 STIF plan.  

 
12. Facility/Property Management: IGM/OS Reed shared the following updates: 

None 
 

13. NW Ride Brokerage: BM Hooter shared the following updates:  
Ridership has increased 250-300 rides a day for customers. Almost fully 
staffed.  

 
14. Miscellaneous:  
                None 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
15. Motion to Approve the Minutes of December 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting  
15. Motion to Approve the Minutes of December 9, 2022 Executive Session Meeting  
16. Motion to Approve the Minutes of December 9, 2022 Special Meeting  
17. Motion to Approve the Minutes of December 21, 2022 Executive Session and 

Special Meeting  
18. Motion to Approve the TCTD December 2022 Visa and Fred Meyer Statements  
  
Motion by Dir. Holm to approve Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Dir. Hanenkrat  
 

 

38



Motion Passed 
By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler, 

Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 

ACTION ITEMS 
19. Resolution #23-01: In the Matter of Establishing a Salary Range for the General

Manager.

Motion by Dir. Adler to Approve Resolution #23-01: In the Matter of Establishing 
a Salary Range for the General Manager. Motion seconded by BC Johnson 

Motion Passed 
By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler, 

Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 

20. Resolution #23-02 In the Matter of Authorizing the Interim General Manger to Submit
Population-Based Funds Subrecipient Application FY 2023-25

IGM/OS Reed said because there was a combination of STF and STIF 
funding, due to act of legislation in 2017 these are included together. Marie 
Mills must submit to STIF to us as subrecipient. This authorizes us to submit 
to their portion.  

Dir. Adler asked about reference to high income/ low-income areas household 
also asked about inclusion of south county. IGM/OS Reed replied that this is 
a question for Resolution #23-03.  

 Motion by Dir. Edwards to Approve Resolution #23-02 In the Matter of 
Authorizing the Interim General Manger to Submit Population-Based Funds 
Subrecipient Application FY 2023-25. Motion Seconded by BC Johnson. 

Motion Passed 
By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler, 

Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 

21. Resolution #23-03 In the Matter of Adopting the 2023-2025 STIF Plan and
Authorizing the Interim General Manager to Submit Application for STIF Formula
Funds

Arla Miller responded to Dir. Adler’s question on previous Resolution. Put this 
together last minute. Carried over programs that where there before. Continued 
the projects forward with reduced fare, deviated fixed route services, add more 

39



funds to contingency pots, etc. With short time frame, this is what I could do. I 
don’t know about South County.  

Dir. Adler asked if we could revise along the way. Arla Miller replied ODOT was 
not given the authority to amend these agreements for STIF funds. This would 
have to be down the road. 

IGM/OS Reed added that these are formula funds, not discretionary. For the 
most part this is what continues to keep wheels going on what we are currently 
doing. With new vehicles, increased fuel prices, expansions in service, those 
are discretionary for Route 5 on last two biennium’s.  

 Motion by Dir. Holm to Approve Resolution #23-03 In the Matter of Adopting the 
2023-2025 STIF Plan and Authorizing the Interim General Manager to Submit 
Application for STIF Formula Funds. Motion Seconded by Dir. Hanenkrat.  

Motion Passed 
By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler, 

Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 

22. Resolution #23-04 In the Matter of Authorizing the Interim General Manager to
Submit 2023-2025 Federal Grant Funding Application

IGM/OS Reed clarified that 5310 grant is specifically for senior and disabled 
services. We try to put preventative maintenance in the pot. All vehicles are 
ADA accessible which means we can use this for that. We use grant 5311 for 
60/70x services to keep those running.  

Motion by Dir. Holm to Approve Resolution #23-04 In the Matter of Authorizing 
the Interim General Manager to Submit 2023-2025 Federal Grant Funding Application. 
Motion Seconded by Dir. Hanenkrat. 

Motion Passed 
By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler, 

Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
23. Appointment to Board of Director Position #1 Expiring 2025 and Appointment to Board

of Director Position #4 Expiring 2023.

BC Johnson asked about ballot with positions. IGM/OS Reed replied that 2023 
will be on ballot and 2025 will be that year unless filled. Dir. Holm added that 
all four are on the ballot. BC Johnson said these are interim period fill ins.  

40



Dir. Hanenkrat asked about one in July. BC Johnson replied that TJ Fiorelli also 
put in an application back in July. There is a total of 4 applications to board for 
vacancies.  

Dir. Holm said he doesn’t know why we aren’t letting elections take its course. 
Dir. Hanenkrat agreed. Dir. Adler added that elections aren’t completed for 6 
months. IGM/OS Reed added that the filing process starts now, swearing in 
isn’t until July.  

BC Johnson asked for Dir. Edwards opinion. Dir. Edwards replied that it’s a 
good point that there’s time in between. I guess I don’t have strong feelings one 
way or another.  

Dir. Holm clarified the seats that are up for election. Dir. Adler asked about a 
5th seat in election.  

Dir. Edwards added that we need experience on the board, glad Gary is here. 
BC Johnson said we should let voters decide. Dir. Hanenkrat agreed. 

BC Johnson said it will be a lot of change when the new GM arrives. Dir. 
Edwards said she agrees. I think it’s a good idea to wait. Its good input. 

Dir. Holm said I expect these folks will be filing for election. This could be me 
or Jackie.   

24. Staff Comments/Concerns:

Interim General Manager/ Operations Superintendent Reed: Thank you to the board,
it’s been an experience, thank you for trusting me. This isn’t what I said yes to in June,
but it’s been good for my career. Going through this with NWOTA. There is a huge
group of people who made this happen and keep going. Natalie is an Administrative
Assistant but has been an executive leader for the past 6 months.

Admin. Assistant/ Board Clerk Zuercher: Thanked the board for their patience.

Brokerage Manager Hooter: Nothing.

25. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns:

Dir. Holm: Thanked Mike for his period of time especially with these big operational
changes. They are a big evolution to district. Working with the community is
spectacular. Thank you to everyone else. Thank you, Jules, for taking over the
Brokerage. Carol is a wonderful person, condolences to Cathy.

Dir. Adler: Mike you did an amazing job. We are almost to finish line. Thank you all for
everything and Happy New Year.

41



Dir. Hanenkrat: Thank you to staff, hopefully we can get close to normal soon. 

Board Chair Johnson: Thank you Arla for all your work. Appreciate you keeping us 
running. Thanked everyone for being here.  

IGM/OS Reed said Mary has been a wonderful chair. 

Dir. Edwards: This has been a trying time, just looking at it. None of us are in trenches, 
thank you Mike. Everyone working together regardless of what is going on. All of you 
have been phenomenal. 

Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 6:55 pm. 

These minutes approved this 16th day of February 2023. 

ATTEST: 

     Mary Johnson, Board Chair      Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

42



43



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Authorizing Signing Authority for ) 
District Bank and Investment     )     RESOLUTION NO. 23-05 
Accounts ) 

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District (the "District") invests 
District funds through the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) as well as Umpqua 
Bank;   

WHEREAS, all transactions must be authorized by an approved signer on behalf 
of the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 
District Board of Directors: 

1. That Mary Johnson, Jackie Edwards, Linda Adler, Marty Holm and Gary
Hanenkrat are Directors of the District, and are hereby authorized to sign
on behalf of the District for the LGIP and Umpqua Bank accounts.

2. That Brian Vitulli is the General Manager and hereby is authorized to sign
on behalf of the District for the LGIP and Umpqua Bank accounts.

3. Any designated depository ("Bank") of the District is authorized and directed
to honor and pay any checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of
money withdrawing funds from any account of the District when bearing or
purporting to bear the facsimile signatures of the persons identified in
Sections One and Two of this Resolution, whether such facsimile signatures
be made by stamp, machine, or other mechanical device·

4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and
shall remain in force until revoked by written notice to the affected bank of
the action taken by the Board of Directors of the District.  This Resolution
supersedes previous motions and resolutions regarding authorized signers
for District investment and bank accounts.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of February 2023. 

ATTEST: 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Mary Johnson, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

44



45



Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors Application 

Name of Applicant: Thomas J. Fiorelli 

Street Address: 

Mailing Address: 

Home Phone: Cell Phone: 

Email Address: 

Present Employment (If not presently employed, enter “N/A” or “Retired”) 

Housing Coordinator, Tillamook County 

Previous Employment 

Instructor (U of O), Housing Analyst (U of O), Consultant (Owner), Planner (LCOG), 
Econ. Dev. Director (Gardiner, ME), Outreach Coordinator (U.S. House Rep, 2012) 

Prior Governmental Experience (elected or appointed) 

City of Eugene Planning Commission (appointed), City of Eugene Urban Renewal 
(appointed), Center for the Advancement of Sustainable Living (U of O)(appointed) 

Prior Board Service Experience, other than governmental 

Historic Preservation (Gardiner, ME), Code for America (Eugene), Bitforest (Eugene) 

Other Community Affiliations 

Board of Directors, (Tillamook Habitat for Humanity), Emergency Food and Shelter 
Program (Tillamook), Toastmasters (Tillamook Talkers) 

Are you knowledgeable about the public transportation needs of resident or employees 
located within or traveling to and from Tillamook County?  Yes  No 

If yes, please describe: 

As Housing Coordinator, I know the needs of those with few or no transportation 
options, and I researched transportation and land use in college and graduate school. 

Why do you wish to serve on the TCTD Board of Directors? 

TCTD serves a key role. Public transit was critical for me as a young person without a 
vehicle. My professional research has demonstrated its importance in community 
development. And, as Housing Coordinator, I am interested in rural transit-oriented 
development for the efficiency, equity, and built-in ridership that it fosters with growth. 

46



Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors Application 

Name of Applicant: Mary S. Leverette 

Street Address: 

Mailing Address: 

Home Phone: Cell Phone: 

Email Address: 

Present Employment (If not presently employed, enter “N/A” or “Retired”) 
Retired 

Previous Employment 
City of Portland, Manager, Business Recycling Programs; State of Oregon, Acting 
Director, Medical Marijuana Program; State of Oregon, Director, Corrections Mental 
Health Services 
Prior Governmental Experience (elected or appointed) 
See above. Appointed to serve 1 year on the State Plumbing Board 

Prior Board Service Experience, other than governmental 
None 

Other Community Affiliations 
Master Recycler, including organizer of the 2022 Wheeler Clean-up Day; recent 
candidate for Wheeler City Council (was not elected); P.E.O. Oregon Scholarship 
Committee Chair 2018-2019, 2019-2020, 2023-2024; other affiliations given on reqt. 
Are you knowledgeable about the public transportation needs of resident or employees 
located within or traveling to and from Tillamook County?  Yes  No 

If yes, please describe: 
I am not completely knowledgable about the public transportation needs of residents 
of Tillamook County. I would like to change this & become involved and responsive to 
the needs of my neighbors. 
Why do you wish to serve on the TCTD Board of Directors? 
I wish to be a contributing, engaged member of my community, making public 
services widely available, as appropriate, & making these efficient & effective to meet 
the varied needs of my neighbors. I am organized, have government experience & 
dedication to my community. Thank you for your consideration. 

47



     Tillamook County Transportation District 
     Board of Directors Application 

Name of Applicant: 

Street Address: 

Mailing Address: 

Home Phone:    Cell Phone: 

Email Address: 

Present Employment (If not presently employed, enter “N/A” or “Retired”) 

Previous Employment 

Prior Governmental Experience (elected or appointed) 

Prior Board Service Experience, other than governmental 

Other Community Affiliations 

Are you knowledgeable about the public transportation needs of resident or employees 
located within or traveling to and from Tillamook County?  Yes  No 

If yes, please describe: 

Why do you wish to serve on the TCTD Board of Directors? 

48


	February Board Packet Cover
	Nov2022Financials
	December2022Financials
	NovPR2022FINAL
	December2022PR
	2023.02.10 NWOTA Meeting Agenda
	2023.01.13 NWOTA Minutes
	1.19.2023 Minutes DRAFT
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	Present
	TCTD Board of Directors
	TCTD Staff
	Mike Reed, Interim General Manager/ Operations Superintendent
	Guest
	Will Chappell, Headlight Herald
	Catherine Hendrix, Guest
	Arla Miller, ODOT
	Kathy Kleczek, NW Transportation Options
	Nathan Finn, Guest
	4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda:
	IGM/OS Reed discussed FS Bond being absent due to bereavement leave. Due to this, no financials tonight as well as service report. Didn’t want to present incomplete information. Recognized Carol McAndrew. Talked about resolutions coming from council t...
	Dir. Holm asked about renumeration of items. IGM/OS Reed clarified why     the renumeration occurred.
	5. Public & Guest Comments:
	a. Catherine Hendrix introduced herself as a member of the Oceanside Neighborhood Association. Discussed 10-year investment plan as well as development of Oceanside Community Coalition. Hopes that the transportation district will be involved as stakeh...
	IGM/OS Reed said he didn’t receive email and you are correct; we have new GM on way. This project will be introduced to him. We are always interceded in making friends with community partners. Route 2 service is vital with in county services. Discusse...
	Catherine Hendrix said she will let Bruce know about giving more information to TCTD about this. Hoping this brings us back together as a community. Will send written documents your way when receive them.
	Dir. Adler asked about how TCTD could be of help to this.
	Catherine Hendrix responded that she worked 25 years in transportation, passionate about public transportation. Knows TCTD does a great job.
	Kathy Kleczek mentioned helping organizing employers in area. Send them my way with transportation. SDAO conference is coming up, hope some have registered and will be there. Opportunities to bring up issues on agenda. Send me an email if this is so. ...
	6. Executive Session:  None
	REPORTS
	7. Financial Report:
	IGM/OS Reed discussed the provided Visa and Fred Meyer statements.
	8. Service Measure Performance Report: None.
	9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance:
	GM/OS Reed updated about pending contract with Trillium, awaiting language. Will be signed and taken care of.
	Discussed STIF funding, led by Arla Miller. Move partners in the same direction    and plan for the future. Partners are excited to meet Brian.
	10. Planning & Development: IGM/OS Reed shared the following updates:
	Service Expansion happening Sunday. Doug had spent a lot of years on this. Three Route 5 trips going into Portland. TCTD is now meeting this specific need.
	Final implementation of the fare policy. Didn’t happen in September due to GM passing in June. Come Sunday these projects will be wrapped up. We have expanded service with Route 6. It has been a heavy lift at the end. Super excited about this. Fare wi...
	11. Grant Funding: IGM/OS Reed shared the following updates:
	Discussed the 4 Resolutions, these deadlines are tomorrow. These things happened quick at the end. Kind of let this slip a little bit, had to put together last minute. The district is so lucky to have Arla Miller who has stepped in to help me with thi...
	12. Facility/Property Management: IGM/OS Reed shared the following updates:
	None
	13. NW Ride Brokerage: BM Hooter shared the following updates:
	14. Miscellaneous:
	None
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	Motion by Dir. Holm to approve Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Dir. Hanenkrat
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	ACTION ITEMS
	19.  Resolution #23-01: In the Matter of Establishing a Salary Range for the General Manager.
	Motion by Dir. Adler to Approve Resolution #23-01: In the Matter of Establishing a Salary Range for the General Manager. Motion seconded by BC Johnson
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	Arla Miller responded to Dir. Adler’s question on previous Resolution. Put this together last minute. Carried over programs that where there before. Continued the projects forward with reduced fare, deviated fixed route services, add more funds to con...
	Dir. Adler asked if we could revise along the way. Arla Miller replied ODOT was not given the authority to amend these agreements for STIF funds. This would have to be down the road.
	IGM/OS Reed added that these are formula funds, not discretionary. For the most part this is what continues to keep wheels going on what we are currently doing. With new vehicles, increased fuel prices, expansions in service, those are discretionary f...
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	IGM/OS Reed clarified that 5310 grant is specifically for senior and disabled services. We try to put preventative maintenance in the pot. All vehicles are ADA accessible which means we can use this for that. We use grant 5311 for 60/70x services to k...
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	23. Appointment to Board of Director Position #1 Expiring 2025 and Appointment to Board of Director Position #4 Expiring 2023.
	BC Johnson asked about ballot with positions. IGM/OS Reed replied that 2023 will be on ballot and 2025 will be that year unless filled. Dir. Holm added that all four are on the ballot. BC Johnson said these are interim period fill ins.
	Dir. Hanenkrat asked about one in July. BC Johnson replied that TJ Fiorelli also put in an application back in July. There is a total of 4 applications to board for vacancies.
	Dir. Holm said he doesn’t know why we aren’t letting elections take its course. Dir. Hanenkrat agreed. Dir. Adler added that elections aren’t completed for 6 months. IGM/OS Reed added that the filing process starts now, swearing in isn’t until July.
	BC Johnson asked for Dir. Edwards opinion. Dir. Edwards replied that it’s a good point that there’s time in between. I guess I don’t have strong feelings one way or another.
	Dir. Holm clarified the seats that are up for election. Dir. Adler asked about a 5th seat in election.
	Dir. Edwards added that we need experience on the board, glad Gary is here.
	BC Johnson said we should let voters decide. Dir. Hanenkrat agreed.
	BC Johnson said it will be a lot of change when the new GM arrives. Dir. Edwards said she agrees. I think it’s a good idea to wait. Its good input.
	Dir. Holm said I expect these folks will be filing for election. This could be me or Jackie.
	24. Staff Comments/Concerns:
	Interim General Manager/ Operations Superintendent Reed: Thank you to the board, it’s been an experience, thank you for trusting me. This isn’t what I said yes to in June, but it’s been good for my career. Going through this with NWOTA. There is a hug...
	Admin. Assistant/ Board Clerk Zuercher: Thanked the board for their patience.
	Brokerage Manager Hooter: Nothing.
	25. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns:
	Dir. Holm: Thanked Mike for his period of time especially with these big operational changes. They are a big evolution to district. Working with the community is spectacular. Thank you to everyone else. Thank you, Jules, for taking over the Brokerage....
	Dir. Adler: Mike you did an amazing job. We are almost to finish line. Thank you all for everything and Happy New Year.
	Dir. Hanenkrat: Thank you to staff, hopefully we can get close to normal soon.
	Board Chair Johnson: Thank you Arla for all your work. Appreciate you keeping us running. Thanked everyone for being here.
	IGM/OS Reed said Mary has been a wonderful chair.
	Dir. Edwards: This has been a trying time, just looking at it. None of us are in trenches, thank you Mike. Everyone working together regardless of what is going on. All of you have been phenomenal.
	Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 6:55 pm.
	These minutes approved this 16th day of February 2023.
	ATTEST:

	PropsedBudgetCalendar2023-24
	23-05 UmpquaSignature
	TCTD Board Member Application - Marni Johnston_Redacted
	TCTD BOD ApplicationTJFiorelliREDACTED
	TCTD-BOD-Application 12.21.2022MaryLeveretteREDACTED
	TCTD-BOD-Application-FindlingREDACTED

	Name: Nathan "Finn" Findling
	Street, City, State, Zip: 
	Home Phone: 
	Cell Phone: 
	Email: 
	Present Employment: Marketer / Owner - Finn Squared, LLC
	Previous Employment: Internet Marketing Specialist - Golden Technologies (2010)
Social Media Manager & SEO Specialists - Livemercial (2006, 2008-2009)
	Prior Governmental Experience: Planning Commission. City of Garibaldi, OR (Current Chair)
Member, PAC Advisory Committee. ODOT / US 101 downtown Garibaldi project
	Prior Board Experience: 
	Other Affiliations: I admin the local Pokemon GO online group. It sounds crazy, but there are hundreds of players, ranging from local leaders to those on services. Tourists find us, too.
	Yes: Choice1
	No: Off
	Transportation Knowledge: Sparsely populated, spaced over 1,300 sq. mi. Second homes, lack of heavy rail, and telecommute culture has increased the income gap, making public transportation vital 
	Wish to Serve: 1) My baby twins are Tillamook County "blue bloods." Living in Garibaldi, their friends from school will be spaced from Bay City to Wheeler. 2) I have friends who are on special services whose mental health is affected the Wave's schedule. 3) See what more we can provide to the smallest cities and unicorporated areas


